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STARCOM INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY LIMITED  
CIN: L67120KA1995PLC078846 

Regd. Off.: 73/1, Sheriff Centre 5th Floor, St. Marks Road Bangalore 560001, Karnataka, India. Ph. 
No.: 080-6750000   Email: sitl.finance@starcominfotech.com 

 
NOTICE OF THE 30th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 
Notice is hereby given that the 30th (Thirtieth) Annual General Meeting of Starcom Information 
Technology Limited (“The Company”) will be held on Monday, the 29th day of September, 2025 at 
11:00 AM through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Video means (OAVM). The place of business 
for this purpose shall be deemed to be the Registered Office of the company at Sheriff Centre, 73/1, 
St Mark’s Road, Bengaluru - 560 001 as the venue for the Meeting and the proceedings of the Annual 
General Meeting shall be deemed to be made there at, to transact the following businesses: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors 
and the Auditors thereon. 
 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Sayeeda Hina (DIN: 03642269), who is liable to retire by 
rotation pursuant to the provisions of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and who is 
not disqualified to become a director under the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, offers 
herself for re-appointment. 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 
3. To consider and approve the authority of the board to enter into contracts with 

related parties of the company. 
 
To consider and if thought fit to pass the following resolution(s) with or without any 
modification(s) as a special resolution: 
 
RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its 
Powers) Rules, 2014, Regulation 23 and other relevant regulations of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Articles of Association of the 
Company and pursuant to the consent of the Audit Committee and Board of Directors, approval 
of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Company to enter into and/or continue the 
related party transactions (including any other transfer of resources, services or obligations) 
entered or to be entered into by the Company with Mr. Ziaulla Sheriff related parties within 
meaning of  Section 2(76) of the Act and Regulation 2(1)(zb) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015  at arm’s length basis up to a limit of INR 
15,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Fifteen Crore only) on such terms & conditions as the board 
may deem fit, and as detailed in the Explanatory Statement annexed to this resolution. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
authorized to do all acts and to take all such steps as may be necessary, proper, or expedient 
to give effect to this resolution, including but not limited to finalizing and executing necessary 
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contracts, arrangements, agreements, and such other documents as may be required, seeking 
all necessary approvals to give effect to this resolution, for and on behalf of the Company. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT no member of the Company who is a related party shall vote on 
this resolution to approve any contract or arrangement if such member is a related party, except 
as provided under the Act and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the actions of Mr. Joydeep Sarkar, Company Secretary or any 
other member of the Board of Directors of the company, in connection with the related party 
transactions are hereby ratified, confirmed, and approved in all respects. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT this resolution shall be effective as of the date hereof and shall 
remain in full force and effect until modified or rescinded by further resolution of the Board of 
Directors.” 
 

4. To consider and approve the appointment of M/s Mehul Jain & Associates, Company 
Secretaries (FRN: S2025KR1012600) as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for 
a period of 5 Financial Years.  
 
To consider and if thought fit to pass the following resolution(s) with or without any 
modification(s) as an ordinary resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to regulation 24A and other applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing 
Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and Section 204(1) of the Companies 
Act 2013 read along with Rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification, 
amendments or re-enactment(s) made thereof for the time being in force), and Articles of 
Association of the Company and superseding any resolution passed earlier in this regard, the 
consent members of the company be and is hereby accorded to the appointment of M/s Mehul 
Jain & Associates, Company Secretaries (FRN: S2025KR1012600) as the Secretarial Auditors of 
the Company for a period of 5 Financial Years starting from Financial Year 2025-26 till the 
Financial Year 2029-30, with the authority to the Board of Directors to ratify the appointment 
in each financial year, as recommended by the Audit Committee, on the terms and conditions 
including remuneration as recommended by the Audit Committee and as mutually agreed by 
the Secretarial Auditors. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Ziaulla Sheriff, (DIN 00002098), Chairman and Managing 
Director or any other Director(s) of the Company or Mr. Joydeep Sarkar, Company Secretary of 
the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts including but not limited to the signing, 
drafting & submitting of all such deeds, forms and documents including signing and filing of 
Form MGT-14 with the Registrar of Companies and to do all such other acts, deeds and things 
deemed necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution”. 
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Kindly make it convenient to attend the Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
 
By order of the Board  
 
For and on Behalf of  
Starcom Information Technology Limited 
(CIN: L67120KA1995PLC078846) 
 
 
 
Joydeep Sarkar 
Company Secretary 
ACS: 60357 
 
Date: 3rd September 2025 
Place: Bengaluru 
 
  

4



 

Starcom Information Technology Limited 
Phone: +91-80-67650000 Email: info@starcominfotech.com 

Website: www.starcominfotech.com 
 
 

Regd office: Sheriff Centre, 73/1, St Mark’s Road, Bengaluru - 560 001 

CIN:L67120KA1995PLC078846, Phone: 91 80 2227 8283 / 2227 1797 

Email: info@starcominfotech.com Website: www.starcominfotech.com 

IMPORTANT NOTES: 
 

1. Pursuant to the General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024, issued by the Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and circular issued by SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ 
CFDPoD-2/ P/ CIR/ 2024/ 133 dated October 3, 2024 (“SEBI Circular”) and other applicable 
circulars and notifications issued (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof 
for the time being in force and as amended from time to time, companies are allowed to hold 
EGM/AGM through Video Conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM), without the 
physical presence of members at a common venue. In compliance with the said Circulars, 
EGM/AGM shall be conducted through VC / OAVM. 
 

2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available 
for this EGM/AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorized 
representatives to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast 
their votes through e-voting. 
 

3. The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in 
the Notice. The facility of participation at the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be made 
available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large 
Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional 
Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors 
etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction on account of first come first 
served basis. 
 

4. The attendance of the Members attending the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for 
the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended)  the Secret arial 
Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the ICSI and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars 
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to time the Company is providing facility 
of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the EGM/AGM. 
For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities 
Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized 
agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as e-
voting on the date of the EGM/AGM will be provided by NSDL. 
 

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 
the Notice calling the EGM/AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www. 
starcominfotech.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock 
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com 
and www.nseindia.com respectively and the EGM/AGM Notice is also available on the website 
of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
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7. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent 
Account Number (PAN) by every person dealing in securities market. Members holding shares 
in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their depository participants 
with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical 
form can submit their PAN details to the Company or M/s MUFG Intime India Private Limited. 
 

8. In terms of section 101 and 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the rules made 
there under, the listed companies may send the notice of annual general meeting and the 
annual report, including financial statements, board report etc., by electronic mode. The 
Company is accordingly forwarding soft copies of the above referred documents to all those 
members, who have registered their email IDs with their respective depository participants or 
with the share transfer agent of the Company. 
 
Members who have not registered their e-mail address with the Company are requested to 
submit their request with their valid email address to M/s MUFG Intime India Private Limited 
Members holding shares in demat form are requested to register/ update their e-mail address 
with their Depository Participant(s) directly. Members of the Company, who have registered 
their email-address, are entitled to receive such communication in physical form upon request. 
 

9. Pursuant to section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 10 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 42 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Register of Members and 
Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 22.09.2025 to 29.09.2025 (both 
days inclusive) for the purpose of the Annual General Meeting. 
 

10. Members joining the meeting through VC, who have not already cast their vote by means of 
remote e-voting, shall be able to exercise their right to vote through e-voting at the AGM. The 
Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also join the AGM 
through VC but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 
 
The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity 
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date (record date) of Monday, September 22, 
2025. The remote e-voting facility will be available during the following period after which the 
portal shall forthwith be blocked and shall not be available: -  
 
Commencement of remote E-Voting 09:00 AM IST on Friday, 26th September, 2025. End of 
remote E-Voting 05:00 PM IST on Sunday, 28th September, 2025.  
 
Once the vote on a resolution is casted by the member, the member shall not be allowed to 
change it subsequently. 
 

11. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholdings maintained 
under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the Members 
at the Registered Office.  
 

12. All documents referred to in the Notice will be available for inspection at the Company's 
registered office during normal business hours on all working days up to the date of the AGM.  
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13. A statement giving the details of the Director seeking re-appointment under Item No 2 of the 
accompanying Notice, as required under Regulation 26(4), Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other requisite information as 
per Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings, is provided in annexure attached herewith. 
 

14. Any query relating to accounts or any other items of business set out in the agenda of the 
meeting must be sent to the Company's Registered Office at least seven days before the date 
of the Meeting. The same will be replied by the Company suitably.  
 

15. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of 
names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM. 
 

16. Members are requested to notify immediately any change in their name, address, e-mail id, 
telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account number (PAN), Nominations, Power of 
Attorney, Bank mandate viz. name and address of the branch of the bank, MICR code, account 
number with blank cancelled cheques to their Depository Participant (DP) quoting their Client 
Ids to their respective Depository Participants (DPs) in case the shares are held in demat form 
and in respect of shares held in physical form to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the 
Company namely M/s MUFG Intime India Private Limited. 
 

17. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of Listed Companies 
can be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019, except in case of 
request received for transmission or transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate 
all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, Members holding 
shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized 
form.  
 

18. Members holding shares in physical form may nominate a person in respect of all shares held 
by them whether singly or jointly. Members who hold shares singly are advised to avail 
nomination facility in their own interest. Members holding shares in demat form may contact 
their respective Depository Participants for recording of nomination. 
 

19. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM in accordance with the Circulars, the route map, 
proxy form and attendance slip are not attached to this Notice 
 

The Instructions for Members for Remote E-Voting and joining General Meeting are as 
under: 
 
The remote e-voting period begins on Friday, the 26th day of September, 2025 at 9:00 A.M. and ends 
on Sunday, the 28th day of September, 2025 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled 
by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / 
Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Monday, the 22nd day of September 2025, 
may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share 
in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date. 
 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned 
below: 
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Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
 
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update 
their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

 

Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with NSDL. 

1. For OTP based login you can click 

on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. 

You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., 

Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on 

registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After 

successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository 

site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or 

e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected 

to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote 

e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 

meeting. 

2. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 

mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial 

Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 

section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and 

Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-

Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-

Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-

Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website 

of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

3. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 

available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online 

for IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

4. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system 

is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will 
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have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen-digit demat account 

number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 

shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be 

redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting 

page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 

NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 

virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.  

5. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 

Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for 

seamless voting experience. 

 
Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made 
available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. 
The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi 
Tab and then user you’re existing my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the 
e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in 
progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking 
the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the 
e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 
Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all 
e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting 
service providers’ website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & 
New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link 
available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email 
as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, 
user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in 
progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting 
Service Providers. 
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Individual 
Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat 
mode) login through 
their depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click 
on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site 
after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click 
on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 
User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 
 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.com 
or call at 022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 
1800-21-09911 

 

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding 
securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices 
after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast 
your vote electronically. 
 

4. Your User ID details are given below: 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e. 
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 
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a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID 
For example, if your DP ID is IN300*** 
and Client ID is 12****** then your user 
ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example, if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 
For example, if folio number is 001*** 
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to 

login and cast your vote. 
 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 
‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial 
password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to 
change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your 

‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent 
to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment 
i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8-
digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or 
folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User 
ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in 
process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  

 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten 
your password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat 

account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 

request at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your 
PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on 
the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the 
check box. 
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8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 
 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting 
system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you 
are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need 
to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number 
of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 
prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 

General Guidelines for shareholders 
 
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 

scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with 
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, 
to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to mehul@csmj.in with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. 
Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board 
Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution 
/ Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 
care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon 
five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to 
go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders 
and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of 
www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request at evoting@nsdl.com  

 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories 
for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the 
resolutions set out in this notice: 
 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of 
PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 
(info@starcominfotech.com). 
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2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16-digit DPID + CLID or 

16-digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN 
(self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar 
Card) to (info@starcominfotech.com). If you are an Individual shareholder holding securities 
in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. 
Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode. 
 

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring 
user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 
 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat 
account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE EGM/AGM ARE 
AS UNDER: - 
 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 
above for remote e-voting. 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM 
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are 
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the 
EGM/AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility 
for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-
voting. 
 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE 
AS UNDER: 
 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the 
NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for 
Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” 
placed under “Join meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on 
VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in 
Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the 
members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User 
ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions 
mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 
  

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 
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3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid 
any disturbance during the meeting. 

 
4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions 
in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile 
number at (info@starcominfotech.com). The same will be replied by the company suitably. 

 
By the order of the Board 

 
For and on Behalf of  
Starcom Information Technology Limited 
(CIN: L67120KA1995PLC078846) 
 
 
 
Joydeep Sarkar 
Company Secretary 
ACS: 60357 
 
Date: 3rd September 2025 
Place: Bengaluru 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 
As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 
The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), given 
hereunder sets out all material facts relating to the special business mentioned at Agenda No. 2 to 6. 
 
Agenda Number 3: To consider and approve the authority of the board to enter into 
contracts with related parties of the company. 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company proposes to seek approval from the members to authorize the 
Board to enter into contracts and arrangements with related parties. This authorization is sought in 
compliance with the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, Regulation 23 of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (LODR), and the Articles of 
Association (AOA) of the Company. 
 
Background and Rationale: 
 
The Company, in the ordinary course of its business, enters into various transactions with related 
parties, which include sale, purchase, or supply of goods or materials, leasing of property, availing or 
rendering of services, and other transactions as defined under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
These transactions are necessary for the smooth functioning and growth of the Company. The board 
feels that the company may get into related party agreement(s) (rental/lease agreements) with Mr. 
Ziaulla Sheriff (or any firm or company or any other partnerships formed by Mr. Ziaulla Sheriff & Bhatia 
Family) related parties within meaning of Section 2(76) of the Act and Regulation 2(1)(zb) of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015  at arm’s length basis up to a limit 
of INR 15,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Fifteen Crore only). 
 
Regulatory Requirements: 
 
Companies Act, 2013: Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 requires that any contract or 
arrangement with a related party with respect to certain transactions must be approved by the Board 
of Directors and, in certain cases, by the shareholders through a special resolution. 
 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015: Regulation 23 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 mandates that 
all material related party transactions require approval of the shareholders through a resolution. A 
transaction with a related party shall be considered material if the transaction(s) to be entered into 
individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year, exceeds 10% of the 
annual consolidated turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements. 
 
Details of Related Party Transactions: 
 

Particulars Related Party 1 

Name of the Related party Ziaulla Sheriff 
 
(Managing Director of the company) 
 
(or any firm or company or any other partnerships 
formed by Mr. Ziaulla Sheriff & Bhatia Family) 
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Nature of transactions as per section 188 of the 
Companies Act. 2013 

Rental/ Lease Agreement with the duration and 
other terms as per the agreement 

Nature of Director or Key Managerial Personnel 
who is related, if any 

Managing Director 

Nature of Relationship Managing Director 

Material terms and particulars of the contract or 
arrangement 

As agreed between the parties  

Monetary Value  Upton INR 15,00,00,000/- 

Any other information relevant or important for 
the members to take decision on the proposed 
resolution 

Nil 

 
Approval Sought: 
 
The Board seeks the approval of the members to authorize the Board of Directors to enter into contracts 
and arrangements with related parties as detailed in the annexure, in compliance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, and the Articles of Association of the 
Company. 
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives, except those who 
are related parties (Ziaulla Sheriff and Ms. Heena Sayeeda, daughter of Mr. Ziaulla Sheriff), are in any 
way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the 
Notice. 
 
The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No. 3 for the approval of the Members as a 
Special Resolution. 
 
Agenda Number 4: To consider and approve the appointment of M/s Mehul Jain & 
Associates, Company Secretaries (FRN: S2025KR1012600) as the Secretarial Auditor of 
the Company for a period of 5 Financial Years.  
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 9 of 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, every listed 
company and such other class of companies as may be prescribed is required to annex with its Board’s 
Report a Secretarial Audit Report given by a Company Secretary in Practice. 
 
Further, in terms of Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR Regulations”), every listed entity and its material unlisted subsidiaries 
incorporated in India are required to undertake a secretarial audit and annex the report of such audit 
with the annual report of the listed entity. Additionally, listed entities are required to submit an Annual 
Secretarial Compliance Report to the stock exchanges within sixty days from the end of each financial 
year, duly certified by a Company Secretary in Practice. 
 
The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, proposes the appointment of 
M/s Mehul Jain & Associates, Company Secretaries (Firm Registration No. S2025KR1012600), having 
the requisite qualifications and peer review certification, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for 
a period of five (5) consecutive financial years commencing from the financial year 2025-26 to 2029-
30, to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Act and 
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the SEBI LODR Regulations, at such remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Board of 
Directors and the said firm from time to time. The Firm is also Peer reviewed pursuant to the regulations 
of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI). 
 
The Board is of the view that the long‑term appointment will ensure continuity, efficiency, and deeper 
understanding of the Company’s compliance framework, thereby strengthening governance oversight. 
 
Pursuant to Regulation 24A of Listing Regulations, the appointment of Secretarial Auditor requires the 
approval of the shareholders vide an ordinary resolution. As per Section 177(4) of the Companies Act, 
2013, Regulation 18(3) read with Part C of Schedule II of Listing Regulations, in line with the 
requirements of the amended Regulation24A of Listing Regulation and based on the recommendation 
of the Audit Committee, the Board at its meeting held on 3rd September 2025 had approved the 
appointment and remuneration of the proposed Secretarial Auditor. The Company will not avail any 
services which are prohibited under the Listing Regulations read along with the SEBI Circular dated 
31st December 2024 from the Secretarial Auditor. Besides the secretarial audit services, the Company 
may also obtain certifications and other permissible non- secretarial audit services from the Secretarial 
Auditor as required from time to time, for which they will be remunerated separately on mutually 
agreed terms, as approved by the Board of Directors as recommended by the Audit Committee. 
 
M/s Mehul Jain & Associates, Company Secretaries is a professional firm offering specialized services 
in Corporate Law, Corporate Restructuring, Securities Law, FEMA and Advisory Services. The 
proprietorship firm of Company Secretaries is driven a dynamic proprietor who bring extensive 
knowledge and a unique holistic approach to various areas of expertise. The firm is a peer reviewed 
firm holding a valid certificate of peer review issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
CS Mehul Jain proprietor of M/s Mehul Jain & Associates, Company Secretaries has done the Secretarial 
Aduit in his own name for the year 2023-24 and 2024-25. 
 
Considering the experience and expertise of M/s Mehul Jain & Associates, Company Secretaries the 
Audit Committee recommends the candidature for appointment as Secretarial Auditor for a term of five 
consecutive years till FY 2029-30 at a remuneration of as discussed mutually with the Secretarial 
Auditor (excluding out of pocket expenses incurred by them in connection with the audit and the 
applicable taxes) to be paid for the FY 2025-26 which is subject to the approval of shareholders at the 
30th AGM. 
 
The remuneration payable for subsequent years shall be based on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee and approval of the Board. 
 
Approval Sought: 
 
The Board seeks the approval of the members to authorize the Board of Directors to appoint M/s Mehul 
Jain & Associates, Company Secretaries (FRN: S2025KR1012600), a Peer Review Unit of the ICSI as 
the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 Financial Years., in compliance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, and the Articles of Association 
of the Company. 
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives, except those who 
are related parties (Ziaulla Sheriff and Ms. Heena Sayeeda, daughter of Mr. Ziaulla Sheriff), are in any 
way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the 
Notice. 
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The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No. 4 for the approval of the Members as an 
Ordinary Resolution. 
 
 
By the order of the Board 

 
For and on Behalf of  
Starcom Information Technology Limited 
(CIN: L67120KA1995PLC078846) 
 
 
 
Joydeep Sarkar 
Company Secretary 
ACS: 60357 
 
Date: 3rd September 2025 
Place: Bengaluru 
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Annexure to Item No. 2 of the Notice 
 

Name of The Director Hina Sayeeda 

Director Identification Number (DIN) 03642269 

Designation Non – Executive Director 

Date of Birth 11th October 1966 

Age 59 years  

Qualifications Master of Commerce (M. Com) 

Nature of Expertise in specific functional area She has expertise in the field of  
Accounting & Finance. 

Experience 32 Years 

Terms and conditions of reappointment She will continue to act as the Non-executive 
Director of the company. 

Last drawn remuneration Nil 

Remuneration proposed to be paid NIL 

Date of first appointment on the Board 8th November 2014 

Shareholding in the Company NIL 

Relationship with other Director/ Manager/KMPs She is the daughter of Mr. Ziaulla Sheriff, the 
Chairman & Managing Director of the Company 

No. of meetings of the Board attended during the 
financial year 2024-25 

3 (Three) 

Other Directorships (other than Starcom 
Information Technology Limited) 

• Ossoor Estates Limited 
• Wartyhully Estates Limited 
• Golf View Homes Limited 
• Engineering Technology Associates 

Apme Private Limited 
• PRI Technologies Private Limited 

 

Membership/Chairmanships of the Committees 
of Boards of other listed entities (other than 
Starcom Information Technology Limited) 

Nil 
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Report of the Board of Directors of the Company 
 
Dear Members, 
 
The Directors of the Company have the pleasure to present this 30th Integrated Annual Report of 
Starcom Information Technology Limited (“the Company”) along with the audited financial statements 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.  
 

1. Financial Performance: 
                                                                                                           (Rs. In lakhs) 

 
Particulars 

Standalone 

Financial Year 
2024-2025 (FY 
2025) 

Financial Year 
2023-2024 (FY 
2024) 

Total Income 330.49 181.83 

Total Expense 830.14 818.94 

Profit/ (loss) before extraordinary items & tax (499.65) (637.11) 

Exceptional Items - - 

Profit/ (loss) before tax (499.65) (637.11) 

Tax expenses/ (Income) - 131.49 

Profit/ (loss) for the period (499.65) (768.60) 

Other Comprehensive Income (1.66) (2.66) 

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the 
year, net of tax 

(501.31) (771.26) 

Earnings per share (basic and diluted) (9.99)  (15.37) 

 
2. State of Company’s Affairs: 

 
During the year under review, the company has earned a Total income of INR 3.30 crore which 
had increased by 81.75% as compared to the total income of the previous year. Further the 
company has posted a total loss of INR 5.01 crore as compared to a total loss of INR 7.71 
crore in the previous year. The Net loss of the company decreased by 35% as compared to 
the net loss the company incurred during the previous financial. 
 
The company has registered an increase in the annual revenue from operations by about 
65.36% compared with the previous year. The loss for the period before tax stands at INR 
4.99 crore as compared to a loss of INR 7.69 crore in the previous year.  
 
The increase in revenue was due to orders from customers in the current year and orders of 
previous years executed in current financial year. Further the loss for the period was lower 
due to higher revenue. 
 
The Company is making efforts to improve operational effectiveness, optimize costs and 
increase market reach across all businesses. Barring unforeseen circumstances, these 
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initiatives would positively impact the current year business revenues and improve the 
operating margins and hence the company will be profitable in the coming period. Your 
directors are continuously working on different avenues for future growth of the company. 
 

3. Change in the nature of business, if any: 
 
The Company's principal business is to be a global IT driven solution provider in the Business 
Intelligence, Analytics and Big Dataspace, focused on innovative products and services. There 
was no change in nature of business activity during the year. 
 

4. Dividend: 
 
The Board did not declare any dividend for the present financial year in the absence of 
distributable surplus. 

 
5. Transfer to reserves: 

 
The closing balance of the retained earnings of the Company for FY 2025, after all 
appropriations and adjustments were INR (28.78) crore. The Company has not transferred 
any amount to any reserve except to what has been shown in the audited Financials of the 
Company. 

 
6. Share Capital: 

 
During the financial year under review your there were no changes in the Capital Structure of 
the Company. 
 
The paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2025 was INR 5,00,06,000/- 
(Indian Rupees Five Crore Six Thousand only) divided into 50,00,600 (Fifty Lakhs six Hundred) 
Equity Shares of INR 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten only) each. The capital structure is as below: 
 

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 

No. of 
Shares 

Amount (INR) No. of 
Shares 

Amount (INR) 

Share Capital  

Authorized 
Capital 

 

Equity Share of INR 
10/- each 

55,00,000 5,50,00,000 55,00,000 5,50,00,000 

TOTAL 55,00,000 5,50,00,000 55,00,000 5,50,00,000 
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Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 

No. of 
Shares 

Amount (INR) No. of 
Shares 

Amount (INR) 

Issued, 
Subscribed and 
fully paid-up 
capital: 

 

Equity Share INR 
10/- each 

50,00,600 5,00,06,000 50,00,600 5,00,06,000 

TOTAL 50,00,600 5,00,06,000 50,00,600 5,00,06,000 

 

Reconciliation of number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and 
at the end of the reporting period: 

 

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 

No. of Shares Amount (INR) 

Equity Shares with voting 
rights 

 

Opening Balance 50,00,600 5,00,06,000 

Add: Shares issued during the 
year 

- - 

Closing Balance 50,00,600 5,00,06,000 

 
7. Listing/Delisting: 

 
The equity shares of the Company are listed at BSE Limited (“BSE”). The Equity Shares of the 
Company will continue to remain listed on BSE having nationwide terminals and the 
shareholders of the Company shall continue to avail the benefits of listing and trading on BSE. 
The stock code of the Company at BSE is 531616. 

 
8. Consolidation of Accounts: 

 
As there is no subsidiary for our company as on 31st day of March, 2025, consolidation of 
accounts for the year ended does not arise. 
 

9. Events Subsequent to the date of the Financial Statements: 
 
There have been no material changes and commitments which have affected the financial 
position of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025 and the date of this 
Board Report. 
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10. Public Deposits: 
 
The Company has not accepted or invited any deposits falling within the meaning of Section 
73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 
during the year under review. 
 

11. Details of Directors / Key Managerial Personnel: 
 
During the year under report the Board was duly constituted as per the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the following directors were on the board: 
 

Sl. 
No. 

DIN Name of Director Designation Date of 
Appointment 

1.  00002098 Ziaulla Sheriff Chairman and 
Managing Director 

12/08/2011 

2.  00020029 Maddur Gundurao Mohan 
Kumar 

Independent 
Director 

12/08/2011 

3.  03642269 Hina Sayeeda Non-Executive 
Director 

08/11/2014 

4.   
03202991 

 Supriya Kumar Guha  Non-Executive 
Director 

 
28/08/2024 

5.  07624256 Akthar Begum Independent 
Director 

28/08/2024 

6.  10747513 Krishnendu Prasad Ray Independent 
Director 

28/08/2024 

 
Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act 2013 the Key Managerial Personnel for the 
period were as follows: 
 

Sl. 
No. 

DIN/ PAN Name of Key 
Managerial 
Personnel 

Designation Date of 
Appointment 

1.  00002098 Ziaulla Sheriff Chairman and 
Managing Director 

12/08/2011 

2.  AAOPA8142K
  

Mukhtar Ahmad Chief Financial 
Officer 

01/06/2011 

3.  GEDPS6725H Joydeep Sarkar Company Secretary 01/12/2023 

 
The company in its Board meeting held on 28th August 2024 has appointed Ms. Akhtar Begum 
(DIN 07624256 and ID no. IDDB-DI-202405-060085) as an additional and independent 
director of the Company on the Board, Mr. Krishnendu Prasad Ray (DIN 10747513 and ID no 
IDDB-NR-202406-060364) as an additional and independent director of the Company on the 
Board and Mr. Supriya Kumar Guha (DIN 03202991) as a non-executive and additional director 
on the Board. Further the company in the Annual General meeting held on 30th day of 
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September 2024 had regularized the appointment of Ms. Akhtar Begum & Mr. Krishnendu 
Prasad Ray as independent directors of the Company for a period of 5 years and also appointed 
Mr. Supriya Kumar Guha (DIN 03202991) as a non-executive director on the Board.  
 
Mr. Mohmmad Yousuf Khan (DIN: 00570339), Independent Director of the company has 
resigned from the office of Independent Directors due to personal reasons as on 7th September 
2024. 
 
Further, Mr. Krishnendu Prasad Ray, holding Director Identification Number (DIN) 10747513 
and Independent Directors Database ID (IDDB-NR-202406-060364), has tendered his 
resignation from the office of Independent Director of the company. The resignation was 
submitted vide letter dated 22nd August 2025, and was received by the company on 26th August 
2025 citing personal reasons. The Company, on the same day, informed BSE on Mr. 
Krishnendu Prasad Ray’s resignation. The Company is on the process of filing his DIR-12 with 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act, the independent directors are in process 
of submitting declarations that each of them meets the criteria of independence as provided 
in Section 149(6) of the Act along with Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of 
the SEBI Listing Regulations. 
 
At the time of appointment of Independent Director, through the induction process, he/she is 
familiarized with the Company, the Director’s roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, 
nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company, etc. 
Detailed presentations are made before the Board Members at the Board and its Committee 
Meetings covering various areas including business, strategy, financial performance and 
forecast, compliances/regulatory updates, audit reports, risk assessment and mitigation, 
industry, roles, rights, responsibilities of Independent Directors, etc. The Familiarization 
Program aims to provide insights into the Company to enable the Independent Directors to 
understand its business in depth and contribute significantly to the Company.  
  
The details of training and familiarization programs are available on our website at 
https://www.starcominfotech.com/images/starcom/pdfs/familiarisation_programme_Indepen
dent_Directors.pdf 
 
The Company has a Policy for performance evaluation of Independent Directors, Board, 
Committees and other individual Directors which include criteria for performance evaluation of 
the Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors. 
The Board and its Committee evaluations involved questionnaire-driven discussions that 
covered a number of key areas / evaluation criteria inter alia the roles and responsibilities, size 
and composition of the Board and its Committees, dynamics of the Board and its Committees 
and the relationship between the Board and management. The results of the reviews were 
discussed by the Board as a whole. Feedback was also sought on the contributions of individual 
Directors. Formal Annual Evaluation was made in compliance with all the applicable provisions 
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of the Act. The Directors were satisfied with the evaluation results, which reflected the overall 
engagement of the Board and its Committees with the Company. 
 
None of the Directors are related to each other or KMP of the Company except Mr. Ziaulla 
Sheriff and Ms. Sayeeda Hina, being father and daughter. 
 

12. Policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration and other details: 
 
The Policy on the directors’ appointment and remuneration can be found on the company’s 
website. The link of the same is: 6-Criteria-of-making-payments-to-non-executive 
directors.pdf (starcominfotech.com) 
 

13. Number of Meetings of the Board: 
 
The Board met Six (6) times during the financial year. The maximum interval between any 
two meetings did not exceed 120 days, as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Attendance at the Board meetings: 
 

Name of 
Director 

Date of Board Meeting 

30th May 
2024 

14th 
August 
2024 

 28th 
August 
2024 

6th 
Septemb
er 2024 

14th 
November 
2024  

14th 
February 
2025 

Ziaulla 
Sheriff 

Present Present Present Absent  Absent  Absent 

Maddur 
Gundurao 
Mohankuma
r  

Present Present Present  Absent Absent  Absent 

Sayeeda 
Hina 

Present Present Present Absent Absent  Absent 

Mohammad 
Yousuf 
Khan  

Present Present Present Absent NA  NA 

Supriya 
Kumar 
Guha 

NA NA NA Present Present Present 

Akthar 
Begum 

NA NA NA Present Present Present 

Krishnendu 
Prasad Ray 

NA NA NA Present Present Present 

 
Further the Independent Directors of the Company met once (1) on 14th February 2025 and 
all Independent Directors were present in the meeting. 
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14. Committees of the Board: 

 
As on March 31, 2025, the Board had three committees, namely: the audit committee, the 
nomination and remuneration committee, stakeholder’s relationship committee. 
 
All the committee were reconstituted by the Board on 28th August 2024. 
 
A. Audit Committee: 

 
Terms of reference: 
 
The Audit Committee is empowered, pursuant to its terms of reference, inter alia, to:  
 

• Investigate any matter within its terms of reference or in relation to the 
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 or referred to it by 
the Board;  

• To seek any information, it requires from any employee;  
• Obtain legal or other independent professional advice and to secure the 

attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and expertise, when 
considered necessary;  

• Have full access to information contained in the records of the Company. 
 

The role of the Committee includes the following:  
 

• To oversee the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its 
financial information and to ensure that the financial statements are correct, 
sufficient and credible;  

• To recommend the appointment, remuneration, terms of appointment and 
removal of Statutory Auditor, and to review the manner of rotation of Statutory 
Auditor;  

• To approve transactions of the Company with related parties, including 
modifications thereto;  

• To review and monitor the Statutory Auditor’s independence and performance, 
and effectiveness of the audit process;  

• To evaluate the Company’s internal financial controls and risk management 
systems;  

• Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;  
• To review with the management the Annual and Quarterly financial statements 

and Auditor’s Report thereon before submission to the Board for approval;  
 
As on March 31, 2025 the committee comprises of three directors viz. Mr. Maddur 
Gundurao Mohan Kumar, Mr. Krishnendu Prasad Ray and Ms. Akthar Begum 
(independent Director) is the chairman of the committee. The company secretary of 
the company is the secretary to this committee. 

26



 

 
All the members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and have accounting or 
related financial management expertise as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
All the major steps impacting the financials of the Company are undertaken only after 
the consultation of the Audit Committee. 
 
During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company had accepted all 
the recommendations of the Committee. 
 
Further, the committee invites such of the executives as it considers appropriate, 
representatives of the statutory auditors and internal auditors, to be present at its 
meetings. 
 
During the year under review, the audit committee met Five (5) times on 30/05/2024, 
14/08/2024, 06/09/2024, 14/11/2024 & 14/02/2025 and the gap between two 
meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The Composition & attendance 
of the members of the committee is given below: -  

 

Audit Committee Member Category No. of Meetings 
Attended 

Mr. Maddur Gundurao 
Mohankumar  

Independent Director  2 

Ms. Sayeeda Hina Non-Executive Director 2 

Mr. Mohammad Yousuf Khan  Independent Director 2 

Ms. Akthar Begum Independent Director 3 

Mr. Krishnendu Prasad Ray Independent Director 3 

 
B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

 
Terms of reference: 

 
• To determine the compensation packages of Executive Directors and Senior 

Executives of the Company. The committee will review recommendations made to 
it by the Company and others.  

• To act as the duly authorized committee of the Board.  
• To determine the parameters and supervise the operation of the bonus schemes 

of the Company.  
• To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.  
• To seek any information from any employee of the Company. Employees are 

directed to cooperate with any relevant request made.  
• To obtain outside legal or independent professional advice. Such advisors may 

attend meetings as necessary.  
• To incur such reasonable expenditure, as it deems necessary.  
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• Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the 
remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. 

• Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.  
• Devising a policy on Board diversity.  
• Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be 

appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down and 
recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and carry out evaluation 
of every Director’s performance. 

 
The Board has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee in line with the 
provisions of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations. The 
Committee, inter-alia, co-ordinates and oversees the annual performance evaluation 
of the Board, Committees and individual Directors.  
 
As on March 31, 2025 the committee comprises of three directors viz. Mr. Krishnendu 
Prasad Ray, Mr. Supriya Kumar Guha and Ms. Akthar Begum (independent Director) is 
the chairman of the committee. The company secretary of the company is the secretary 
to this committee. 
 
During the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met one 
(1) time on 14/02/2025. The Composition & attendance of the members of the 
committee is given below: 
 

Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee 
Member 

Category No. of Meetings 
Attended 

Ms. Akthar Begum Independent Director & 
Chairman 

1 

Mr. Supriya Kumar Guha Non-Executive Director 1 

Mr. Krishnendu Prasad Ray Independent Director 1 

 
C. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee: 

 
Terms of Reference 

 
The Committee monitors the Company’s response to investor complaints like non 
receipt of dividend, annual reports, notices etc. It has also been authorized to approve 
the issue of duplicate share certificates in lieu of those lost or destroyed. The 
composition and terms of reference of the Committee are in conformity with the 
requirements of Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations and provisions of Section 178 
of the Act. The Committee has been empowered to consider and resolve the grievances 
of the security holders of the Company. 
 
Functions and Powers:  
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• To review statutory compliance regarding the Equity share (Investors);  
• To review various reports related to Investors;  
• To review grievances of Investors;  
• To review transfer of shares;  
• To review transmission of shares;  
• To review deletion of names from share certificates;  
• To review change of name of Member on share certificates;  
• To review issue of duplicate share certificates;  
• To review dematerialization of shares and  
• Any other matter relating to the above-mentioned functions incidental to the 

shareholders/investors of the Company. 
 

In accordance with the provisions of the Listing Regulations, the power to execute 
transfers, transmissions, etc. of shares in the physical form has been delegated to the 
Registrar & Share Transfer Agents.  
 
As on March 31, 2025 the committee comprises of three directors viz. Mr. Krishnendu 
Prasad Ray, Mr. Maddur Gundurao Mohankumar and Mr. Supriya Kumar Guha (Non-
Executive Director) is the chairman of the committee. The company secretary of the 
company is the secretary to this committee. 
 
During the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met one 
(1) time on 14/02/2025. The Composition & attendance of the members of the 
committee is given below: 
 

Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee 
Member 

Category No. of Meetings 
Attended 

Mr. Supriya Kumar Guha Non-Executive Director 
& Chairman 

1 

Mr. Maddur Gundurao 
Mohankumar  

Independent Director  1 

Mr. Krishnendu Prasad Ray Independent Director 1 

 
D. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee: 

 
During the year under review, the Company did not fall within the purview of Section 135 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and it was not mandatory for the Company to constitute 
committee on Corporate Social Responsibility or incur any expenditure towards Corporate 
Social Responsibility. Hence the Company has not constituted the Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee. 
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15. Policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration and other details: 
 
The appointment of the Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel is recommended to the 
Board by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Company has framed a policy to 
determine the qualification and attributes for appointment and basis of determination of 
remuneration of all the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees. A copy of 
the policy is on the website of the company, the link to the same is 6-Criteria-of-making-
payments-to-non-executive directors.pdf (starcominfotech.com). 
 

16. Loan from Directors: 
 
The Company has taken loans from Directors during the year under review and have obtained 
declaration pursuant to Rule 2(1)(c)(viii) of the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 
2014. 
 
As per the requirement of proviso to Rule 2(1)(c)(viii) of the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposits) Rules, 2014, the details of money accepted by the Company from the Director during 
the financial year 2024-25 is mentioned below: 

(Amount in Lakhs) 

Name of Director Designation Amount of Loan 
Outstanding as on           
31st March 2025 

Ziaulla Sheriff Managing Director 461.75 

Ziaulla Sheriff Managing Director 258.36 (rent payable) 

 
 

17. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or 
tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future: 
 
During the year under review, no significant and material orders were passed by the regulators 
or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.  
 

18. Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower: 
 
Pursuant to provisions of section 177 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has 
established a “Vigil mechanism” incorporating Whistle Blower Policy in terms of the Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements, 2015 for employees and Directors of the Company, 
for expressing the genuine concerns of unethical behavior, frauds or violation of the codes of 
conduct by way of direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. 
The Company has also provided adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and 
Directors who express their concerns. The policy on vigil mechanism/ whistle blower policy 
may be accessed on the Company’s website at 
http://www.starcominfotech.com/images/starcom/pdfs/VigilMechanism.pdf 
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19. Internal Financial Control & Adequacy: 
 
The Company has devised appropriate systems and framework for adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements commensurate with the size, scale and 
complexity of its operations including proper delegation of authority, policies and procedures, 
effective IT systems aligned to business requirements, risk based internal audit framework, 
risk management framework and whistle blower mechanism. 
 
The Audit Committee regularly reviews the internal control system to ensure that it remains 
effective and aligned with the business requirements. In case weaknesses are identified as a 
result of the reviews, new procedures are put in place to strengthen controls. 
 
During the year, controls were tested and reportable material weakness were identified. The 
Auditors had also stated about material weakness in their report on adequacy of internal 
financial control. The Company is taking necessary steps to improvise the documentation in 
respect of specific policies and procedures and the IT Controls pertaining to internal financial 
controls over financial reporting. 
 

20. Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund: 
 
The Company has not declared any dividend during the Financial Year 2024-25 and hence no 
unclaimed Dividend was transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. 
 

21. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR): 
 
The provisions of Section 135 of the Act read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company and therefore no report is attached 
under this head. 
 

22. Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place – Prevention 
Prohibition and Redressal Act, 2013: 
 
The Company has in place an Anti-sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of 
the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013. An Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) is being setup pursuant to the provisions 
mentioned under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013 relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee to redress 
the complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees are covered under this 
Policy. The policy is gender neutral. 
 
During the financial year under review, the Company did not receive any complaints pertaining 
to sexual harassment. 
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23. Compliance with the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 
 
The Company affirms full compliance with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961, 
as amended from time to time. All eligible female employees were granted maternity leave in 
accordance with statutory entitlements, including the extended leave period where applicable. 
The Company has also ensured the provision of nursing breaks during working hours, as 
mandated under Section 11A of the Act, thereby facilitating a supportive environment for new 
mothers returning to work. 
 
Where the employee strength at a given location exceeded the prescribed threshold, crèche 
facilities were made available either directly or through third-party arrangements, in line with 
Rule 6 of the Maternity Benefit (Mines and Circus) Rules, 1963 and relevant notifications. The 
Company continues to monitor compliance through periodic HR audits and remains committed 
to fostering a workplace culture that upholds dignity, inclusivity, and statutory protections for 
all employees. 
 

24. Change in name of Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 
 
The name of Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company is changed to MUFG Intime India 
Private Limited (RTA) from Link Intime India Private Limited, with effect from December 31, 
2024. This is pursuant to acquisition of Link Group by Mitsubishi UFJ Trust & Banking 
Corporation, by way of scheme of arrangement. 
 

25. Corporate Governance:  
 
As per the provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the provisions of Corporate Governance are not 
applicable to your Company. Thus, the Company is not required to annex a Report on 
Corporate Governance. 
 

26. Management Discussion & Analysis Report:  
 
As required under Regulation 34 read with Schedule V(B) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and 
Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, report on “Management Discussion and 
Analysis” is attached as Annexure I and forms a part of this Report. 
 

27. Extract of annual return: 
 
In accordance with Section 134(3)(a) read with Section 92(3) of the Act, the Annual Return in 
Form MGT-7 is placed on the website of the Company and same can be downloaded by clicking 
on the following link: https://starcominfotech.com/investors.aspx 
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28. Particulars of Employees:  
 
The information required to be disclosed with respect to the remuneration of Directors and 
KMPs in the Directors’ Report pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 is attached as Annexure II. 
 
There was no employee drawing remuneration more than the limit mentioned under Rule 
5(2)(i) to (iii) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014.  
 
The names of top ten employees of the Company in terms of remuneration drawn as required 
pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 read with the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Amendment Rules, 
2016 is set out as Annexure III. 
 
The Company does not have any Holding Company or Fellow Subsidiary Company and      thus, 
provision w.r.t. receipt of commission from them is not applicable. 
 

29. Health, Safety and Environment: 
 
Your Board is committed to highest standards of providing healthy environment for safety of 
its employees and your Board reviews the same from time to time. 
 

30. Gender-Wise Employee Strength 
 
As on 31st March 2025, the total number of employees on the rolls of the Company is as 
follows: 
 

• Male: 25 
 

• Female: 7 
 

• Transgender: Nil 
 
This disclosure is made in accordance with the Companies (Accounts) Second Amendment 
Rules, 2025, and reflects the Company’s commitment to transparent reporting and inclusive 
workforce representation. The Company continues to promote diversity and equal opportunity 
across all levels of its operations. 
 

31. Particulars of Loans, Guarantee & Investment: 
 
Details of loans, guarantees and investments under the provisions of section 186 are given in 
notes to financial statements. 
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32. Directors’ responsibility statement: 

 
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) under the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for certain financial 
instruments, which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (to 
the extent notified) and guidelines issued by SEBI. The IND AS are prescribed under Section 
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 
2016. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued 
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard 
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.  
 
The directors confirm that:  
 

• In preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been 
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures. 
 

• They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and are prudent, so as to give a true 
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and 
of the profit of the company for that period.  
 

• They have taken proper and sufficient care towards the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for 
safeguarding the assets of the company and preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities. 
 

• They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.  
 

• They have laid down the internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and 
that they are adequate and were operating effectively.  
 

• They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 
33. Statutory Auditors:  

 
In accordance with the Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014, at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 30th September 
2022, M/s CAS & Co. (formerly known as K.M. Tulsian & Associates) Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No. 111075W) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a 
term of 5 years from the conclusion of the 27th Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of 
32nd Annual General Meeting.  
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The requirement for annual ratification of auditor’s appointment at the AGM has been omitted 
pursuant to Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 notified on May 7, 2018. 
 
During the year, the Statutory Auditors have confirmed that they satisfy the Independence 
criteria required under Companies Act, 2013 and Code of ethics issued by Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Further the auditors have also confirmed that they have been 
peer reviewed and a certificate to that extent has been obtained by the Company. 
 
The Statutory Auditors of the Company have provided a Qualified Opinion of the Financial 
Statements of the Company which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Cash 
Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date and notes to 
financial statements a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.  
 
The management’s reply to the observations/Qualification in the Statutory Audit Report is 
given under: 
 

Clause 
No. 

Statutory Auditors’ Remarks/ Observations Management Reply 

a.  As stated in Note No. 39 of the accompanying 
financial statements, The Company have an overdue 
statutory dues as on 31st March 2025 in respect of 
Sales Tax / Service Tax / Goods and Service Tax of 
Rs. 240.58 lacs (including interest of Rs. 166.54 
lacs), Provident Fund / ESIC / Professional Tax of 
Rs. 227.84 lacs (including interest of Rs. 139.04 
lacs) and Tax Deducted at Source or Rs. 1047.77 
lacs (including interest of Rs. 574.01 lacs). Though 
the Company has provided for interest up to 31st 
March 2025 in respect of these liabilities, any other 
consequential impacts as per the respective laws are 
not ascertained at present. Accordingly, we are 
unable to comment upon the resultant effect of 
same on the Assets, Liability and Loss of the 
company. 

The company has paid a 
sum of INR 33.16 Lakhs, 
INR 5.37 and INR 25.69 
Lakhs against PF, TDS & 
GST respectively in FY 
2024-25 and will be 
servicing all the statutory 
dues in the next financial 
year.  
 
 
                                                                                                      

b.  As stated in Note No. 40 of the accompanying 
financial statements, the Company has not provided 
rent for the year ended 31st March 2025 amounting 
to Rs. 37.95 lacs in respect of office premises owned 
by a promoter of the Company jointly with his 
partner in other business. since the Company is 
having stress in working capital finance and major 
funds are utilized in intangible assets under 
development. Had these expenses have been 

There is no rental 
agreement between the 
Company and Landlord for 
the previously occupied 
premises. The company 
has subsequently shifted 
its corporate office to a 
new premises and 
provisions and payments 
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recognized by the Company, rent expense, loss for 
the year would have been higher by Rs. 37.95 lacs 
and liabilities and debit balance of other equity 
would have been higher by Rs.607.15 lacs as at 31st 
March 2025. 

are made wherein rent is 
paid on monthly basis.  
 

c.  c. Attention is invited to Note No. 41 of the 
accompanying financial statements, in respect of 
Intangible Assets under Development amounting to 
Rs. 2431.02 lacs which has not been completed 
since long time. In the absence of appropriate audit 
evidence, we are unable to comment whether it is 
probable that the expected future economic benefits 
that are attributable to the asset will flow to the 
Company and impairment loss if any in respect of 
the same. Accordingly, we are unable to comment 
upon the resultant effect of same on the Assets, 
Liability and Loss of the company. 

The company has initiated 
the process of capitalizing 
the Intangible assets and 
in the coming financial 
year the same will be 
completed and will be 
registered as an 
Intellectual Property. 
There was no 
development in the 
financial year 2024-25. 
 

d.  As stated in Note No. 21 of the accompanying 
financial statements, The company has received an 
amount of Rs 1000 lakhs from the City builder  ( the 
new buyer of the land ) as a compensation for 
vacating the premised which was taken as lease 
earlier for 40 Years of  lease period, this lease was 
between the Premises earlier Owner and Mr. Ziaulla 
Sheriff (Director of company) since  in the absence 
of relevant document to conclude the nature of the 
transaction the said amount has been shown as 
Other current liability. 

The transaction will be 
concluded in the next 
financial year with the 
relevant documentation 
for the same.  

e.  Material Uncertainty Related to Going 
Concern  
 
Attention is invited to Note No. 42 of the 

accompanying financial statements which indicate 

that the company has incurred cash losses, and its 

net worth is fully eroded. Further the Company’s 

Current liabilities exceed its current assets as at the 

date of the Balance sheet. These conditions indicate 

the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast 

significant doubt about the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern. However, the company 

has prepared its financials on going concern basis, 

as the Management is pursuing prospective 

investors to meet its working capital requirements 

The management is 
actively pursuing with 
prospective investors for 
investment in the 
company. The operations 
of the Company are 
expected to make profits 
in future. 
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and is of the opinion that the operations of the 

Company will make profits in future. 

f.  Remark in the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 
2020 
 
According to the records of the Company, amount 
deducted/accrued in the books of accounts in 
respect of the undisputed statutory dues including 
Provident fund, Employee’s State Insurance, Income 
tax, Goods and Services tax, Duty of Customs, Cess 
and other Statutory Dues wherever applicable have 
not been regularly deposited with the appropriate 
authorities. For details Refer Note no. 39 of the 
financial statements. 

The amounts paid to the 
statutory authorities for 
the year are mentioned in 
Point A of this report. 

g.  Remark in the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 
2020 
 
According to the information and explanation given 
to us and the records of the Company examined by 
us, there are no dues of income tax, goods and 
service tax, customs duty, cess and any other 
statutory dues which have not been deposited on 
account of any dispute except the following: 
 

Name of the 
statute 

Amount in Lakhs 

Value Added Tax, 
Karnataka 

37.25 

Employees 
Provident Fund and 
Miscellaneous 
Provisions, Act 

144.85 

Professional Tax, 
Karnataka 

0.06 

Income Tax Act, 
1961 

592.87 

Goods and Services 
Tax Act, 2017 

177.85 

 

The company is working 
with authorities to get the 
disputed liabilities cleared. 
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34. Secretarial Auditor:  
 
As required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules there under, the Board 
appointed M/s Mehul Jain & Associates, Company Secretaries (FRN: S2025KR1012600) as 
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for financial year 2024-2025.  The Secretarial Audit Report 
issued by M/s Mehul Jain & Associates, Company Secretaries (FRN: S2025KR1012600) for the 
financial year 2024-25 in Form MR-3 forms part of this report and marked as Annexure IV. 
The reply from the Board on the remarks/ qualifications of the Secretarial Auditors is as under: 
 

Sl. 
No. 

Secretarial Auditors’ Remarks/ Observations Management Reply 

a.  The Company has delayed in submitting the 
Shareholding Pattern of the company for the 
Quarter ended March 2024 to the BSE pursuant to 
Regulation 31(1)(b) of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended 
from time to time) and paid a fine in this regard. 

The Management has noted 
about the delay and has 
undertaken that the same 
shall be taken care of in the 
future. 

b.  The Company has delayed in intimating the stock 
exchange with regards to various Board Meetings 
held to the BSE pursuant to Regulation 29 of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 has paid a fine in this regard. 

The Management has noted 
about the delay and has 
undertaken that the same 
shall be taken care of in the 
future. 

c.  The Company has delayed in submitting the Share 

Capital audit report for Quarter ended March 2024 

to the BSE pursuant to Regulation 76 (1) SEBI 

(DAP) Regulation, 2018. 

The Management has noted 
about the delay and has 
undertaken that the same 
shall be taken care of in the 
future. 

d.  The Company has delayed in submitting the 
Statement of Grievance Redressal Mechanism of 
the company for the Quarter ended March 2024 to 
the BSE pursuant to Regulation 13(3) of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (as amended from time to time) 
and paid a fine in this regard. 

The Management has noted 
about the delay and has 
undertaken that the same 
shall be taken care of in the 
future. 

e.  The Company has delayed in submitting the 

Processing of Demat requests form by Issuer/ 

RTAs report for Quarter ended March 2024 to the 

BSE pursuant to Regulation 74 (5) SEBI (DAP) 

Regulation, 2018. 

The Management has noted 
about the delay and has 
undertaken that the same 
shall be taken care of in the 
future. 
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f.  The Company appears to be an entity which is 

Structured Digital Data base non-compliant entity 

and the same appears on the BSE website.  

The company remains 
committed to be fully 
compliant and will see 
through that the same is 
complied. 

g.  The Company has not filed the reporting of annual 

return on Foreign Liabilities and Assets (FLA) for 

the Financial Year (FY) 2020-2021, FY 2021-22, FY 

2022-23, FY 2023-24 & FY 2024-25 as required 

under the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 

1999 even though it has foreign / non-resident 

shareholding. 

The Company has initiated 
the process of filing the FLA 
required under the Foreign 
Exchange Management Act, 
1999 and the delay will be 
rectified shortly. 

h.  The Company has failed to file Form MSME Form I 
with the Registrar of Companies pursuant to Order 
2 and 3 dated 22 January, 2019 issued under 
Section 405 of the Companies Act, 2013 even 
though the company has outstanding payments to 
Micro or Small Enterprises. 

The management has noted 
this error and in process to 
take necessary steps to 
rectify the same 

i.  The Company has delayed in filing the Annual 

return in Form MGT-7 with the office of the 

Registrar of Companies pursuant to Section 92 of 

the Companies Act 2013 read along with rule 11 of 

the Companies (Management and Administration) 

Rules, 2014 and has paid late filing fee. 

The Management has noted 
about the delay and has 
undertaken that the same 
shall be taken care of in the 
future. 

j.  The Company has delayed in filing the Annual 

accounts in Form AOC-4 with the office of the 

Registrar of Companies pursuant to Section 137 of 

the Companies Act 2013 read along with rule 12(2) 

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014 and has 

paid late filing fee. 

The Management has noted 
about the delay and has 
undertaken that the same 
shall be taken care of in the 
future. 

k.  We have not received the signed copies of Minutes 

of the Meetings along with the attendance register 

and notice of the Board of Directors of the 

Company, the committees’ meetings and 

Shareholders meetings. 

The same was in place signed 
but we were not able to 
produce the same due to 
internal restructuring 

l.  We have not received the declaration from 

independent directors of the company about their 

independence and qualification pursuant to the 

provision of Companies Act 2013 and Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

The same was in place signed 
but we were not able to 
produce the same due to 
internal restructuring 

 

39



 

35. Internal Auditors: 
 
Pursuant to Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, and on the basis of the recommendation of Audit Committee,   M/s 
Nagaraj & Ajith, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 010986S) continue to act as the Internal 
Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2024- 2025. 
 
The report of the internal Auditor of the company is available on the website of the company 
at https://starcominfotech.com/ 
 

36. Cost Records and Cost Audit:  
 
Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions 
of Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable for the business activities 
carried out by the Company.  
 

37. Related Party Transactions:  
 
The particulars of every contract or arrangement entered into by the Company with related 
parties referred to in sub-Section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
transactions entered at arm’s length under third proviso, in prescribed Form No. AOC -2, is 
appended as Annexure V to the Directors’ Report. 
 

38. Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and 
Outgo:  
 
The particulars as prescribed under Sub-Section (3)(m) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 
2013, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is attached as Annexure VI. 
 

39. Research & Development Activities:  
 
The Management of your Company has been committed to building a strong R&D culture from 
day one and has set clear R&D goals. In order to achieve these goals, the Company has 
focused on furthering the efficacies of R&D activities as well as building synergies among 
multiple-impact technologies.  
 

40. Secretarial Standards:  
 
The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to 
Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly 
followed by the Company.  
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41. Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures & Associates:  
 
The Company did not have any Subsidiary Company/Joint Venture/Associate Company during 
the year under review. 
 

42. Reporting of Fraud by Auditors:  
 
During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors have not reported under Section 143 
(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, any instances of fraud committed against the Company by 
its officers or employees, the details of which would need to be mentioned in the Board’s 
Report.  
 

43. Risk Management:  
 
The Company’s robust risk management framework identifies and evaluates all the risks that 
the organization faces such as strategic, financial, credit, market, liquidity, security, property, 
legal, regulatory, reputational and other risks. The Company recognizes that these risks need 
to be managed and mitigated to protect its shareholders and other stakeholders, to achieve 
its business objectives and enable sustainable growth. The risk framework is aimed at 
effectively mitigating the Company’s various business and operational risks, through strategic 
actions. 
 
Risk management is an integral part of our critical business activities, functions and processes. 
The risks are reviewed for the change in the nature and extent of the major risks identified 
since the last assessment. It also provides control measures for risks and future action plans. 
 
The Board is in process of revamping its risk management policy to make it more in line with 
the future plans of the company. 
  

44. The details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year along with their status as at the end 
of the financial year: 
 
The Company has not made any application under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
 

45. The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-
time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or 
Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof. 
 
There is no difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time 
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions 
along with the reasons thereof. 
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46. Green Initiative:  
 
Electronic copies of the Annual Report 2024-25 and the Notice of the AGM are sent to all the 
members whose email addresses are registered with the Company. 
 

47. General: 
 
Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items 
as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review: 
 

i. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise. 
 

ii. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under 
any scheme. 
 

iii. Issue of sweat equity shares. 
 
iv. Voting rights which are not directly exercised by the employees in respect of shares 

for the subscription/ purchase of which loan was given by the Company (as there is no 
scheme pursuant to which such persons can beneficially hold shares as envisaged 
under Section 67(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013). 
 

v. Explanation for deviation in use proceeds of public issue, rights issue, preferential issue 
etc.  
 

Further the Company is following the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute 
of Company Secretaries of India. 
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ANNEXURE – I 
 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS OVERVIEW 

 
Starcom Information Technology Limited, headquartered in Bangalore and listed on BSE, continues 
to strengthen its position in Master Data Management (MDM), Data Quality, Business Intelligence 
(BI), Data Analytics, and Computer-Aided Engineering (CAE). With enterprises worldwide accelerating 
digital transformation, demand for trusted, real-time, cloud-native and AI-driven solutions is growing 
rapidly. 

 
The Company is building on its legacy while aspiring to become a leading global, IP-driven solution 
provider. We continue to attract top talent, expand customer engagements, and develop long-term 
partnerships. 
 
Mission  
Our mission is to help organizations unlock the power of their data with trust, speed, and scale. 
 
Through platforms such as Star360, StarDQ, and StarBI, Starcom enables enterprises to: 
 

• Integrate data across cloud, big data, and traditional systems in real time. 
• Create a unified, 360° view of customers and business operations. 
• Leverage analytics, AI/ML, and automation for improved sales, service, compliance, and 

decision-making. 
 
Data volumes continue to grow exponentially, cloud data warehouses and AI technologies are 
becoming mainstream, and organizations are shifting to self-service, real-time, and hybrid data 
environments. Starcom products address these transformations by offering agile, scalable, and cost-
efficient solutions. 

Products 

  
Customer 360 Platform 

• Interactive, self-service platform unifying customer data from silos (CRM, BI, digital apps, 
call centers, bots, mobile). 

• Embedded StarDQ ensures cleansing, enrichment, and de-duplication. 
• Creates a single source of truth and a comprehensive 360° view of the customer. 
• Features include data sourcing, standardization, de-duplication, reconciliation, dashboards, 

alerts, and real-time monitoring. 
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Data Quality Engine 

• Automated enterprise-grade engine for data cleansing, de-duplication, clustering, and 
enrichment. 

• Processes millions of records daily in hours instead of days or months. 
• Supports batch and real-time workflows, with online verification for golden records. 
• Includes a Data Steward Module for handling exceptions and manual enrichment when 

needed. 
 

  
Self-Service Business Intelligence 

• Empowers business users with intelligent BI, predictive analytics, and visual dashboards. 
• Connects to multiple data sources; reports and alerts can be created in just a few clicks. 
• Enables KPI tracking, trend analysis, and better decision-making without heavy IT 

dependency. 
 

  
Finite Element Analysis Suite 

• One of the world’s most comprehensive and established CAE / FEA software suites. 
• Fully integrated pre/post-processing environment with advanced GUI and CAD 

interoperability. 
• Addresses industries including aerospace, automotive, energy, oil & gas, marine, 

biomedical, sports, electronics, and civil-structural. 
• Flagship modules: NISA Mechanical, NISA Civil, NISA Design Studio. 
• Positioned for global growth as the FEA market expands across advanced engineering 

applications. 

Defense 

Starcom is a registered MSME vendor to DRDO and has successfully executed over 100 projects across 
more than 20 DRDO laboratories. 
 
Key contributions include: 
 

• Long Range Surface-to-Air Missile (LRSAM) 
• Astra Beyond Visual Range Missile (BVRM) 
• Airborne Early Warning & Control System (AEW&CS) 
• Rustom-II UAV 
• Tejas Advanced Light Combat Aircraft 
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Defense and aerospace remain strategic growth sectors under “Make in India”. With India targeting 
USD 25 billion in defense production by 2025 (including USD 5 billion exports), we see significant 
opportunities ahead, limited only by execution capacity. 

Academic Tools: 

Driving Excellence in Teaching & Learning 

At Starcom, we are committed to elevating the teaching and learning experience. We achieve this by 
providing world-class laboratory infrastructure and equipping both faculty and students with the latest 
Embedded & Analog Development tools, technologies, and methodologies 

Comprehensive Solutions & Support 

Our extensive portfolio includes product sales, dedicated support, and expert consultancy. We also 
run faculty development programs and student initiatives across various engineering disciplines, 
including ECE, EEE, TCE, CSE, Instrumentation, and Medical Electronics 

Empowering Hands-On Learning 

Our Embedded and Analog solutions enable users to observe the practical behavior of systems, grasp 
fundamental concepts, conduct lab experiments, develop custom projects, and become proficient in 
modern electronic system design. 

Advanced Tool Suite for Innovation 

We provide a wide range of cutting-edge tools covering DSP Development, Embedded Systems, 
Analog Circuits, and Integrated Communication technologies, fostering a complete and innovative 
learning environment 
 
 

 

Opportunities & Threats 

• Enterprises adopting AI, ML, IoT, and big data analytics at scale. 
• Accelerated migration to cloud and hybrid platforms for agility and cost-efficiency. 
• Expanding global demand for CAE/FEA solutions. 
• Rising need for real-time, self-service analytics across industries. 
• Competitive threats from agile new entrants in cloud data and analytics. 
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Marketing 

Our marketing initiatives focus on: 

• Increasing awareness of Starcom solutions globally. 
• Building the MDM, BI, and CAE community. 
• Driving demand via SEO, digital campaigns, webinars, whitepapers, and trials. 
• Supporting sales with research insights, lead generation, and product positioning. 
• Free trials and thought-leadership content continue to be strong drivers of customer 

engagement and adoption. 

Sales 

• Dual approach through direct sales teams and global channel partners. 
• E-commerce self-service model for StarBI and trial editions of our software. 
• Land-and-expand sales model: initial deployments scale across departments and 

geographies. 
• Dedicated Customer Success team ensures smooth deployments, renewals, and expansion 

opportunities. 

Our Strategy 

Starcom’s strategy combines sustainable growth with global relevance, focusing on both renewal and 
innovation. 

Key drivers of our growth strategy: 

• Maintain technology leadership through continuous innovation. 
• Expand and diversify our customer base. 
• Grow our ecosystem of cloud and technology partners. 
• Scale globally with SaaS and subscription-based models. 

Competition 

The marketplace is rapidly evolving with both global majors and niche startups competing in MDM, 
BI, and CAE. 

Starcom differentiates through: 

• Comprehensive end-to-end solutions. 
• Ability to scale across industries and geographies. 
• Proven delivery track record in enterprise and defense sectors. 
• Talented professionals and strong customer relationships. 
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1. Segment-wise Performance: 

 
The segment-wise performance of the Company during the year is given below: 

 

Particulars Year ended        
31st March 2025  

(Amt in Lacs) 

A. Segment Revenue  

1. Test, Measurement & Embedded Solutions for Educational Sector 247.84 

2. Data Quality, Statistical & Analytics Software 49.51 

Total Revenue 297.35 

B. Segment Results  

1. Test, Measurement & Embedded Solutions for Educational Sector (30.29) 

2. Data Quality, Statistical & Analytics Software 12.88 

Total (17.41) 

Less: Finance Charges 40.61 

Unallowable Expenditure 441.64 

Add: Exceptional Item  

Total Profit Before Tax (499.65) 

Less: Tax Expenditure - 

Total Profit After Tax           (499.65) 

C. Capital Employed  

1.Test, Measurement & Embedded Solutions for Educational Sector 123.19 

2. Data Quality, Statistical & Analytics Software 2,733.37 

3.Unallocated 68.61 

Total Capital Employed 2,925.17 

 
2. Outlook: 

 
In order to meet the changing market realities, our Company has been following the philosophy 
of providing the highest quality products and solutions at the lowest possible prices. 
All endeavors are made to achieve possible cost reduction in every area of operations. 
Our Company’s philosophy is to provide high class quality products i.e. full value for money to 
consumers; this would greatly benefit in the long run. 
Our Company believes in building and maintaining deep customer relationships and become a 
trusted business partner to global enterprises. 

 
3. Risks and concerns: 

 
The Company has been initiating various risk management programs to combat strategic, 
operational and financial as well as compliance-related risks across various levels of the 
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organization. It includes risk assessment and mitigation at the company level, business / 
functional unit level, relationship level and project level. The risk management process is 
continuously improved and adapted to the changing global risk scenario. The agility of the risk 
management process is monitored and reviewed for appropriateness with the changing risk 
landscape. The process of continuous evaluation of risks includes taking stock of the risk 
landscape on an event driven as well as quarterly basis. 

 
4. Internal Control systems and their adequacy: 

 
The Company maintains adequate internal control system, which provides, among other things, 
reasonable assurance of recording the transactions of its operations in all material aspects and 
of providing protection against significant misuse or loss of Company’s assets. 

 
The Company has an adequate system of internal controls implemented for achieving efficiency 
in operations, optimum utilization of resources with analysis of data to strengthen it to meet the 
changing requirements. However, the Company is taking the necessary steps to improvise the 
documentation with respect to the specific policies and procedures and the IT Controls pertaining 
to internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

 
5. Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational 

performance: Financial performance: 
 

Particulars 2024-25 
(Amount in Rs.) 

2023-24 
(Amount in Rs.) 

Change 
(%) 

Revenue from operations 
(1) 

297.35 179.82 65.35 

Other income (2) 33.14 2.01 1548.75 

Sub-total (1+2) 330.49 181.83 81.75 

Total Expenditure 830.14 818.94 1.36 

Profit/(Loss) before Tax (499.65) (637.11) (21.57) 

Profit/ (Loss) after Tax (499.65) (768.6) (34.99) 

 
There has been increase of in the revenues of the Company as compared to the previous year 
by (65.35%). The total expenses got marginally increased by 1.36% from Rs.830.14 Lakhs in the 
previous year to Rs.818.94 Lakhs in the current year.  However, the other income of the 
Company has increased by (1548.75%).  During the current financial year, the Company has 
recorded Loss after tax of Rs. (499.65) Lakhs as compared to the Loss after tax of Rs. (768.6) 
Lakhs in the previous year. The Company is expected to earn profits in the coming years. 
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DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS 
 

Details of significant changes in key financial ratios are given as under: 
 

Sl No. Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Variation 
(%) 

i. Debtors Turnover 1.06     0.44 140.09 

 ii. Inventory Turnover 18.47 22.39       (17.5) 

  iii. Current Ratio 0.08 0.07 14.28 

 iv. Debt Equity Ratio (0.66) (1.13)      (41.49) 

      v. Operating P r o f i t  M a r g i n  
 

(125.51) (296.89) 13.40 

   vi. Net Profit Margin (1.68) (3.54) (64.68) 

    vii. Return on Net worth    (99.91) (127.4) (13.53) 

 
Reason for change in 25% or more in key financial ratios as compared to the 
immediately previous financial year: 

 
i. Debtors Turnover Ratio: During the year under review, the Debtors Turnover ratio 

increased mainly due to increase in collections and maintaining credit policies. 
     

ii. Debt Equity Ratio: Sharp decrease on account of increase in borrowing & decrease 
in Loss 
 

iii. Net Profit Margin: The reduction in margin is due to decline in sales and provision for 
expected credit loss 

 
 

6. Material developments in Human Resources/ Industrial Relations front: 
 

In any services enterprise, employees form the core of an organization. We recognize the 
vitality of this stakeholder. A significant portion of our management focus is invested in 
engaging with our employees and improvement of services to the client’s satisfaction. 

 
 

During the year the Company has not reported any Management-Employee conflict. The 
Company is committed to create an appropriate climate, opportunities and systems to 
facilitate identification, development and utilization of employees’ full potential on a 
continuous basis. 

 
Number of employees: 
There were 32 (including KMP) permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st 
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March 2025. 
 

Cautionary Statement: 
 
Certain statements made in the management discussion and analysis report relating to the 
Company’s objectives, projections, outlook, expectations, estimates and others may 
constitute ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and 
regulations. Actual results may differ from such expectations, projections and so on, whether 
express or implied. Several factors could make a significant difference to the Company’s 
operations. These include economic conditions affecting demand and supply, government 
regulations and taxation, natural calamities and so on over which the Company does not 
have any direct control. The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify 
or revise any forward-looking statements, on the basis of any subsequent developments, 
information or events. 

 
Place: Bengaluru For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Date: 03.09.2025 Starcom Information Technology Limited 
  

 
 

 Ziaulla Sheriff 
 Chairman and Managing Director 
 DIN: 00002098 
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ANNEXURE – II 
 

DETAILS OF REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
(pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014) 
 

A. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of 
the employees of the Company for the financial year: 
 
The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the Financial Year 
2024-25 was INR 5,94,000/-. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the 
median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25 
will be zero as no remuneration is paid to the Directors. 
 

B.The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director and KMP, in the 
financial year:  
 
During the Financial Year Mr. Joydeep Sarkar, Company Secretary and Compliance 
officer of the Company has been paid INR 3,60,000/- as remuneration, further no 
remuneration is paid to the Directors & CFO of the Company. 
 

C. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the 
Financial Year:  
 
In the Financial Year 2024-25, there was an increase of 8.62% in the median 
remuneration of employees. 
 

D. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 
 
There were 32(including KMP) permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as 
on 31st March 2025. 

 
E. Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other 

than the managerial personnel in the last Financial Year and its comparison 
with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification 
thereof: 
 
Average percentile increase made in the salaries of employees other than the 
managerial personnel in the last Financial Year was 4.41% whereas no remuneration is 
paid to the Directors of the Company. This is based on the Nomination & Remuneration 
policy of the company that rewards people differentially based on their contribution to 
the success of the company and also ensures that external market competitiveness and 
internal relativities are taken care of. 
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F. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the 
Company: 
 
It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Policy for Remuneration of 
the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees. 

 
Place: Bangalore For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Date: 03.09.2025 Starcom Information Technology Limited 
  

 
 

  
Ziaulla Sheriff 

 Chairman and Managing Director 
 DIN: 00002098 
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ANNEXURE – III 
 

STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES  
pursuant to the companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014 
 

SL. No. - -  

Name - - 

Designation - - 

Remuneration Received (in 
INR) 

- - 

Qualification - - 

Experience in Years - - 

Age in Years - - 

Commencement of 
employment  

- - 

Last employment held 
- - 

 
None of the employees earned salary more than the prescribed amount during 

the year. 

 
Place: Bengaluru 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Date: 03.09.2025 Starcom Information Technology Limited 
  

 
 

 Ziaulla Sheriff 
 Chairman and Managing Director 
 DIN: 00002098 
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ANNEXURE IV 
 

Form No. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For the Financial year ended 31st March 2025 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 
To,  
The Members,  
Starcom Information Technology Limited 
(CIN: L67120KA1995PLC078846)  
73/1, Sheriff Centre, 5th Floor,  
St. Marks Road, Bangalore - 560001  
 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices by Starcom Information Technology Limited 
(CIN: L67120KA1995PLC078846) (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.  
 
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 
and other records maintained by the Company to the extent provided to us and also the 
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during 
the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during 
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2025 complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and 
compliance - mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter. 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by Starcom Information Technology Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year 
ended on 31st March 2025 according to the provisions of:  
 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;  
 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 
 

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;  
 

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder 
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings – Not applicable to the extent of Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings as there was no reportable 
event during the Financial Year under review. 
 

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -  
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a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;  
 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015;  
 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 – Not Applicable to the Company during 
the Audit period as the Company has not issued any new securities;  
 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 
Regulations, 2014 – Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period 
as the Company has not issued any ESOP/ESPS; 

 
e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008 – Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period 
as the Company has not issued any Debt instruments/ Securities; 
 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 
client;  
 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2009 – Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period 
as delisting of securities did not take place;  
 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 
1998 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period as the 
Company has not bought back its securities); and 
 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 
vi. Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:  

 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:   
 

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; with 
respect to the Board Meetings and General Meetings.  
 

ii. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange 
Limited along with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 

 
In respect of other laws specifically applicable to the Company, we have relied upon information 
produced by the Company during the course of our audit and the reporting is limited to that 
extent.  
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Further a detailed verification of the applicable laws was not conducted due to non-
availability of the necessary information. 
 
Note: Regulations 17, 17A, 18, 19, 20, 21,22, 23, 24, 24A, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) and 
(t) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are 
not applicable to the Company as the paid up equity share capital of the Company does not 
exceed              INR 10 Crore and net worth does not exceed INR 25 Crore, as on the last day 
of the previous financial year.  
 
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except to the extent as mentioned 
below:  
 

A. The Company has delayed in submitting the Shareholding Pattern of the company for the 
Quarter ended March 2024 to the BSE pursuant to Regulation 31(1)(b) of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and paid a fine in this regard. 
 

B. The Company has delayed in intimating the stock exchange with regards to various Board 
Meetings held to the BSE pursuant to Regulation 29 of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has paid a 
fine in this regard. 
 

C. The Company has delayed in submitting the Share Capital audit report for Quarter ended 
March 2024 to the BSE pursuant to Regulation 76 (1) SEBI (DAP) Regulation, 2018. 
 

D. The Company has delayed in submitting the Statement of Grievance Redressal Mechanism 
of the company for the Quarter ended March 2024 to the BSE pursuant to Regulation 
13(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and paid a fine in this 
regard. 
 

E. The Company has delayed in submitting the Processing of Demat requests form by Issuer/ 

RTAs report for Quarter ended March 2024 to the BSE pursuant to Regulation 74 (5) SEBI 

(DAP) Regulation, 2018. 

 

F. The Company appears to be an entity which is Structured Digital Data base non-compliant 

entity and the same appears on the BSE website. 

 

G. The Company has not filed the reporting of annual return on Foreign Liabilities and Assets 

(FLA) for the Financial Year (FY) 2020-2021, FY 2021-22, FY 2022-23, FY 2023-24 & FY 

2024-25 as required under the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 even though it 

has foreign / non-resident shareholding. 
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H. The Company has failed to file Form MSME Form I with the Registrar of Companies 
pursuant to Order 2 and 3 dated 22 January, 2019 issued under Section 405 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 even though the company has outstanding payments to Micro or 
Small Enterprises. 
 

I. The Company has delayed in filing the Annual return in Form MGT-7 with the office of the 
Registrar of Companies pursuant to Section 92 of the Companies Act 2013 read along with 
rule 11 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and has paid late 
filing fee. 
 

J. The Company has delayed in filing the Annual accounts in Form AOC-4 with the office of 
the Registrar of Companies pursuant to Section 137 of the Companies Act 2013 read along 
with rule 12(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014 and has paid late filing fee. 
 

K. We have not received the signed copies of Minutes of the Meetings along with the 
attendance register and notice of the Board of Directors of the Company, the committees’ 
meetings and Shareholders meetings. 
 

L. We have not received the declaration from independent directors of the company about 
their independence and qualification pursuant to the provision of Companies Act 2013 and 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 
 

We further report that  
 

• The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, and Independent Directors including 
Women Directors.  
 

• We were given to understand that majority decision is carried through in the Board and 
its committee meetings while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded 
as part of the minutes. However, we have not noticed any dissenting views as per the 
minutes. 
 

• The Company needs to strengthen its systems and processes to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.  
 

• Evidence has not been produced that adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule 
the Board Meetings, agendas were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system 
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting. Further, detailed notes on agenda items have not been sent always. 
The Company is advised to comply with the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute 
of Company Secretaries of India in letter and spirit. 

 
We further report that during the audit period; there were no instances of:  
 

i. Public/Rights/Bonus/Preferential issue of shares/debentures/sweat equity.  
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ii. Redemption/buy-back of securities. 
 

iii. Merger/amalgamation/reconstruction etc.  
 

iv. Foreign technical collaborations.  
 
This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms 
an integral part of this report.  
 
Thank you, 
 
For and on behalf of 
Mehul Jain & Associates, 
Company Secretaries 
(FRN: S2025KR1012600) 
 
 
Mehul Jain 
Proprietor 
 
ACS No. 65749 
CoP No.: 26136 
(Peer review Certificate no.: 6724/2025)   
 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 29th August 2025 
 
UDIN: A065749G001108307  
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Annexure A 
To,  
The Members,  
Starcom Information Technology Limited  
(CIN: L67120KA1995PLC078846 )  
73/1, Sheriff Centre, 5th Floor,  
St. Marks Road, Bangalore - 560001  
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with the letter.  
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.  

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. 
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.  

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books 
of Accounts of the company.  

4. Where ever required we have obtained the Management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happenings of events etc.  

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited 
to the verification of procedures on test basis.  

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the company.  

 
Thank you, 
 
For and on behalf of 
Mehul Jain & Associates, 
Company Secretaries 
(FRN: S2025KR1012600) 
 
 
Mehul Jain 
Proprietor 
 
ACS No. 65749 
CoP No.: 26136 
(Peer review Certificate no.: 6724/2025)   
 
Place: Bengaluru 
Date: 29th August 2025 
 
UDIN: A065749G001108307  
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ANNEXURE V 
 

FORM NO. AOC -2 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of 

the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the 
company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso 
thereto –  
 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements of transactions not at arm’s length basis: 
NIL 
 
a. Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship  

 
b. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions 

 
c. Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions 

 
d. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if 

any 
 

e. Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions 
 

f. Date(s) of approval by the Board 
 

g. Amount paid as advances, if any: 
 

h. Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required 
under first proviso to section 188 
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2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transaction at arm’s length 
basis:  
 

Sl. 
No. 

Particulars 1 2 

1.  Name(s) of the related party and 
nature of relationship 

Joydeep Sarkar 
 
Company Secretary 
and Compliance 
officer 

Ziaulla Sheriff 
 
Managing 
Director 

2.  Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ 
transactions 

Salary Loans Repaid 

3.  Duration of the contracts/ 
arrangements/ transactions 

Annual One time 

4.  Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transactions 
including the value, if any: 

Nil Nil 

5.  Date(s) of approval by the Board 30.05.2023 30.05.2024 

6.  Amount paid as advance, if any Nil Nil 

 

 

 
Place: Bengaluru 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Date: 03.09.2025 Starcom Information Technology Limited 
  

 
 

  
Ziaulla Sheriff 

 Chairman and Managing Director 
 DIN: 00002098 
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ANNEXURE VI 
1. Conversation of Energy: 

 
a. The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy; 

 
Your Company is in service industry and not having manufacturing activity. The Company 
is not covered under the list of specified industries. However, the Company on continuous 
basis takes measures for conservation of power. 

 
b. The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: 

 
The Company is using electricity as main source of its energy requirement and does not 
have any alternate source of energy. 

 
c. The capital investment on energy conservation equipment: 

 
Not Applicable 

 
2. Technology Absorption: 

 
a. Efforts taken to absorb technology: 

 
The Company evaluates the best available technology for improving its performance and 
quality of its service operations. 
 

b. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or 
import substitution: 
 
The Company has not absorbed/made any new technology during the year. 
 

c. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the 
beginning of the financial year): 
 
No technology has been imported by the Company. 
 

d. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development:  
 
Nil 
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3. Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo: 
 
The information relating to the total foreign exchange used and earned by the Company is 
given below: 
  

Particulars 2024-25 (in INR) 2023-24 (in INR) 

Foreign Exchange inflow - - 

Foreign Exchange outflow - - 

 
Place: Bengaluru 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Date: 03.09.2025 Starcom Information Technology Limited 
  

 
 

  
Ziaulla Sheriff 

 Chairman and Managing Director 
 DIN: 00002098 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

To the Members of Starcom Information Technology Limited    

 

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements  

 

Qualified Opinion 

 

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Starcom Information Technology 

Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the Statement of Profit 

and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of 

Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2025, and notes to financial statements  a summary of 

material accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as “Ind AS financial 

statements”).  

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except the 

possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the aforesaid Ind AS 

financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required 

and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 

133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) 

and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31st 

March, 2025, the loss (Financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and 

changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2025. 

 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

 

a. As stated in Note No. 39 of the accompanying financial statements, The Company have an overdue 

statutory dues as on 31st March 2025 in respect of Sales Tax / Service Tax / Goods and Service Tax 

of Rs. 240.58 lacs (including interest of Rs. 166.54 lacs), Provident Fund / ESIC / Professional Tax 

of Rs. 227.84 lacs (including interest of Rs. 139.04 lacs) and Tax Deducted at Source or Rs. 1047.77 

lacs (including interest of Rs. 574.01 lacs). Though the Company has provided for interest up to 31st 

March 2025 in respect of these liabilities, any other consequential impacts as per the respective laws 

are not ascertained at present. Accordingly, we are unable to comment upon the resultant effect of 

same on the Assets, Liability and Loss of the company. 

 

b. As stated in Note No. 40 of the accompanying financial statements, the Company has not provided 

rent for the year ended 31st March 2025 amounting to Rs. 37.95 lacs in respect of office premises 

owned by a promoter of the Company jointly with his partner in other business. since the Company 

is having stress in working capital finance and major funds are utilized in intangible assets under 

development. Had these expenses have been recognized by the Company, Rent expense, loss for 

the year would have been higher by Rs. 37.95 lacs and liabilities and debit balance of other equity 

would have been higher by Rs.607.15 lacs as at 31st March 2025. 
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c. Attention is invited to Note No. 41 of the accompanying financial statements, in respect of Intangible 

Assets under Development amounting to Rs. 2431.02 lacs which has not been completed since long 

time. In the absence of appropriate audit evidence, we are unable to comment whether it is probable 

that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company 

and impairment loss if any in respect of the same. Accordingly, we are unable to comment upon the 

resultant effect of same on the Assets, Liability and Loss of the company. 

 

d. As stated in Note No. 21 of the accompanying financial statements, The company has received an 

amount of Rs 1000 lakhs from the City builder  ( the new buyer of the land ) as a compensation for 

vacating the premised which was taken as lease earlier for 40 Years of  lease period, this lease was 

between the Premises earlier Owner and Mr. Ziaulla Sheriff (Director of company) since  in the 

absence of relevant document to conclude the nature of the transaction the said amount has been 

shown as Other current liability.. 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) 

of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 

Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone financial statements 

under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Ind AS 

financial statements.  

 

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern  

 

Attention is invited to Note No. 42 of the accompanying financial statements which indicate that the company 

has incurred cash losses, and its net worth is fully eroded. Further the Company’s Current liabilities exceed 

its current assets as at the date of the Balance sheet. These conditions indicate the existence of a material 

uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

However, the company has prepared its financials on going concern basis, as the Management is pursuing 

prospective investors to meet its working capital requirements and is of the opinion that the operations of the 

Company will make profits in future. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

66



 

Key Audit Matters 

 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 

of the Standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of 

our audit of the financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 

separate opinion on these matters. During the course of our audit, we have determined that there are no key 

audit matters to be communicated in our report except for the matters prescribed in Basis of Qualified Opinion 

& Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section. 

 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

 

The Company’s management and Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the management discussion and analysis, Board’s Report, 

annexure to board report and report on corporate governance but does not include the financial statements 

and our auditor’s report thereon. 

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 

of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 

in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 

our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 

based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial 

Statements  

 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in sub-section 5 of Section 134 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that 

give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive 

income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with IndAS and accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed under 

Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 

the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 

application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease  

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.  

 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

1.   Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 

our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit 

conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 

can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 

statements. 

 

2.    As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

 

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 

a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 

control.  

 

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we 

are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal 

financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.  

 

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management.  
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•  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 

report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 

as a going concern.  

 

•   Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 

•         Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 

the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 

factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 

evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

 

3. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 

that we identify during our audit.  

 

4. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  

 

5. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 

of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 

audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not 

be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a 

statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable. 

 

 

 

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that: 
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a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.  

 

b) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph 

above, in our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company 

so as far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

 

c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the 

Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the books of account.  

 

d) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph 

above, in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 

Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014. 

 

e) The matters described under the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ paragraph and the ‘Material 

Uncertainty Related to Going Concern’ paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect 

on the functioning of the Company. 

 

f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 

from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

 

g) The qualifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith 

are as stated in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph above. 

 

h) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 

and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”; and   

 

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us:   

 

i. The Company has disclosed pending litigations which would impact its financial position- 

Refer Note 32 to the Ind AS financial statements.. 

 

 

 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses.  
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iii. The company is not required to transfer any amounts as required by the law to Investor 

Education and Protection Fund 

 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned 

or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 

funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity 

(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate 

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; 

 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the 

Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, 

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) 

above, contain any material misstatement. 

 

v. Based on our examination, which include test checks, the company has used accounting 

software for maintaining its books of accounts for the Financial year ended March 31, 2025 

which have the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 

throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in softwares. Further during our 

audit we did not come across any instances of the audit trail feature being tampered with. 

 

Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory 

requirements for record retention for the current year. 

 

 

 

 

vi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 

has not paid/provided for any managerial remuneration, accordingly the provisions of 

Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the Company 
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3. Since The Company has not declared / paid any dividend during the year, Section 123 of the Act is not 

applicable. 

 

 

 

For C A S & Co.  

Chartered Accountants  

Firm’s Reg. No. 111075W 

 

 

 

 

 

 Sajjan Kanodia 

Partner  

Membership No. 048047 

  UDIN: 25048047BMKRCK3306 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: May 30, 2025 
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Annexure “A” to Independent Auditor’s Report 

Annexure referred to in Paragraph 1 of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our 

Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Starcom Information Technology Limited (“the 

Company”) on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025. 

  As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 and according to the information and 

explanations given to us during the audit and on the basis of such checks of the books and records as were 

considered appropriate we report that: 

 

  i)  a) A)The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative 

details and situation of its Property, Plant and equipment. 

   

  B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

   

 b) 

  

As explained to us, the Property, Plant and equipment have been physically verified by the 

management in accordance with a phased programme of verification, which in our opinion is 

reasonable, considering the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with 

this program certain fixed assets were verified during the year. The frequency of verification is 

reasonable, and no discrepancies have been noticed on such physical verification. 

   

 c)   Since the Company does not hold any Immovable Property, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not 

applicable. 

   

 d) 

 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its 
property, plant and Equipment and its intangible assets. Accordingly, the requirements under 
paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 
 

 e) 
 

According to information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated during 

the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami 

property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made 

thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(i) (e) of the Order are not applicable 

to the Company 

   

   ii) 
 

a) 
 

The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management. In our opinion, the 
frequency of verification, coverage & procedure of such verification is reasonable and appropriate. 
No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 
 

 

 
  

b)  The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ₹ 5 crore, in aggregate, 
at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of 
current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 
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  iii) 

  

 
 

According to the information explanation provided to us, during the year the Company has not 

made any investments in, and not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or 

advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability 

Partnerships, or any other parties, during the year. Hence paragraph 3 (iii) (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and 

(f) of the said Order are not applicable to the Company. 

 

   

vi)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, section 185 and 186 

of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable, since the Company does not have any loans, 

investments, guarantees or security. 

   

v)  The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public in accordance with the provisions of 

sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under 

   
vi)  The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-

section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the 

Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company 

   

vii) 

 
 
 
 

a) According to the records of the Company, amount deducted/accrued in the books of accounts in 

respect of the undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund, Employee’s State Insurance, 

Income tax, Goods and Services tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other Statutory Dues wherever 

applicable have not been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. For details Refer 

Note no. 39 of the financial statements. 

   
 b) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company 

examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, cess and 

any other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except 

following: 
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Name of the 

statute 

Nature of dues` Amount 

(Rs. in 

lacs) 

Period to 

which the 

amount relates 

 

Forum where dispute is 

pending 

Value Added Tax, 
Karnataka 

Value Added Tax 6.95 FY 2015-16 Assistant Commissioner 

 11.53 FY  2016-17 

Penal Damages 18.77 FY  2015-16 & 

FY 2016-17 

The Employees’ 
Provident Funds and 
Miscellaneous 
Provisions Act, 1952 

Provident Fund 17.39 04/2016 to 

06/2018 

Assistant PF Commissioner 

Penal Damages 5.05 07/2013 to 

12/2018 

Assistant PF Commissioner 

Provident Fund 13.42 10/2021 to 

11/2022 

Assistant PF Commissioner 

Penal Damages 25.34 01/2016 to 

06/2021 

Assistant PF Commissioner 

Provident Fund 78.71 07/2018 to 

09/2021 

Assistant PF Commissioner 

Provident Fund 4.94 10/2021 to 

11/2022 

Assistant PF Commissioner 

Professional Tax, 

Karnataka 

Penal charges on 

Professional tax 

0.06 2020-21 Professional Tax Officer 

Income Tax Act, 

1961 

Tax Deducted at 

Source 

65.53 2012-13 to 

2024-25 

Central processing center 

Income Tax Act, 

1961 

 

Income Tax 30.88 AY 2017-18 Income tax appeal 

Income Tax 255.23 AY 2018-19 Income tax appeal 

Income Tax 96.43 AY 2019-20 Income tax appeal 

Income Tax 144.80 AY 2020-21 Income tax appeal 

Goods and Services 

Tax Act , 2017 

GST Act 106.46 FY 2017-18 Assistant commissioner of 

commercial Taxes 

Goods and Services 

Tax Act , 2017 

GST Act 63.15 FY 2018-19 Assistant commissioner of 

commercial Taxes 

Goods and Services 

Tax Act , 2017 

GST Act 8.24 FY 2019-20 Assistant commissioner of 

commercial Taxes 

 

 viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are not 
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accounted in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the 

year in Tax Assessment of the Company. Also, there are no previously unrecorded income which 

has been now recorded in the books of account. Hence, the provision stated in paragraph 3(viii) of 

the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

   

ix) a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 

defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any lender as 

the loan amounting to Rs. 1032.93 Lakh and interest thereon of Rs. 167.44 Lakh are repayable on 

demand and term and conditions for payment of Loan and interest thereon have not been 

stipulated. And in another cases loan was provided for long term purpose by Rs 371.78 lakhs for 

which repayment of loans or borrowings or in payment of interest thereon is not stipulated. 

   

 b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit 

procedures, we report that the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or 

financial institution or government or any government authority. 

   

 c)  In our opinion and according to the information explanation provided to us, no money was raised 

by way of term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the 

Order is not applicable to the Company. 

   

 d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, 

and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no funds 

raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the company. 

   

 e) According to the information explanation given to us and on an overall examination of the financial 

statements of the Company, we report that the company has not taken any funds from an any 

entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint 

ventures. 

   

 f) According to information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not raised loans 

during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate 

companies. 

   

x)  a) The Company has neither raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 

(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order is not 

applicable to the Company. 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
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placement of shares or fully, partly or optionally convertible debentures during the year. 

Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the 

Company. 

   

xi) a) During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out 

in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the 

information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material 

fraud by the Company or on the Company. 

   

 b) We have not come across of any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company 

during the course of audit of the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025, 

accordingly the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company.  

   

 c)  As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the 

Company during the course of audit. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(c) of the 

Order is not applicable to company. 

   

xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 clause (xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the 

Order is not applicable to the Company. 

   

xiii)  According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 

177and 188 of the Act, where applicable. The details of such related party transactions have been 

disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (AS) 24 

‘Related Party Disclosures” specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 

7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014.  

   

xiv) 

 

a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system 

commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

   

 b) We have considered, the draft internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the 

Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit 

procedures. 

   

xv) 
 

 According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the 

directors or persons connected with him during the year under review. Accordingly, provisions of 

section 192 of Companies Act under this clause is not applicable. 

   

 

 

xvi) a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India 

Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(a) of the Order is not 
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applicable to the Company. 

   

 b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without 

any valid Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of India.  Hence, the reporting under 

paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

   

 c) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by 

Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order is not 

applicable to the Company. 

   

 d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the Group 

does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not applicable. 

   

xvii) 
 

 The Company has incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding 

financial year amounting to Rs. 368.85 lakhs and Rs. 384.60 lakhs. 

 

   

xviii   According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company there is no resignation of the statutory auditors has been taken during the 

year. 

   

xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Financial statements and our 

knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the 

evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to 

believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that 

Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 

they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this 

is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is 

based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 

assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will 

get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

78



 

 

xx)  
 

Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to company. Hence reporting under clause 

3(xx) of the Order is not applicable. 

  
xxi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any 

subsidiary / Associate/ Joint Venture. Accordingly, there is no preparation of consolidated financial 

statements. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xxi) of the Order are not 

applicable to the Company. 

   

For C A S & Co.  
Chartered Accountants  
Firm’s Reg. No. 111075W 
 
 
 
Sajjan Kanodia  
Partner 
Membership No. 048047 
UDIN: 25048047BMKRCK3306 
 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 30, 2025 
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the financial statements of 

Starcom Information Technology Limited for the year ended 31st March 2025. 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 

of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Starcom Information 

Technology Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the 

financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 

of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 

of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 

Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 

2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit 

of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 

controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects. 
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 

internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 

financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 

testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 

assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 

company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures  of  the  company  

are  being  made  only  in  accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 

company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 

on the financial statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 

financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 

financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 

that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

Qualified Opinion 

 

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our audit, the following material 

weakness has been identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls 

over financial reporting as at 31st March, 2025: 
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The documentation in respect of specific policies and procedures and the IT Controls pertaining to 

internal financial controls over financial reporting are not adequate and needs to be further 

strengthened. 

 

A “material weakness” is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial 

reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Company’s 

annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.  

 

In our opinion, except for the possible effect of the material weakness described above on the 

achievement of the objectives of the control Criteria ,  the Company has maintained , in all material 

respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal 

financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the 

internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.   

 

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in determining the nature, 

timing and audit tests applied in our audit of the financial statements of the Company and these 

material weaknesses above does not affect our opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

 

 

For C A S & Co  

 Chartered Accountants  

 Firm Registration No. 111075W  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Sajjan Kanodia  

Partner  

Membership No. 048047 

UDIN: 25048047BMKRCK3306 

 
Date:  May 30, 2025 
Place: Mumbai 
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